
City of Long Beach Memorandum 
Working Together to Serve 

Date: May 10, 2019 

To: f trick H. West, City Manag�_,Ct,L 

From: Linda F. Tatum, Director of Development Servicesf
r 

Mayor and Members of the City Council For: 

Subject: Update on Tenant Assistance Motion 

On April 2, 2019, the City Council received and filed a Report on Tenant Assistance Policies 
and authorized the City Attorney to prepare a Tenant Assistance Ordinance (Ordinance). The 
attached memo provides the motion adopted on April 2, 2019 (Attachment A). In addition to 
specific changes and/or additions to staff's policy recommendation, the motion directed staff 
to research the following items, which are addressed in this memo: 

• The applicability of U.S. Department of Veterans' Affairs (VA) loans for 4-unit properties 
and whether this policy will have an impact on the market;

• How a tenant could re-earn the status of "good standing" if a tenant has violated any 
provision during their tenancy; 

• The issue of exemption of relocation benefits if a landlord provides at least a 6-month 
notice to vacate; and, 

• Confirm that the tenant relocation assistance program does not violate the Costa-
Hawkins Act or any other provision of applicable law.  

U.S. Department of Veterans' Affairs (VA) Loans 

A veteran may purchase a multi-family property of up to four units using a VA loan. However, 
they must meet the VA's occupancy guidelines. Service members who secure a VA purchase 
loan must certify that they intend to personally occupy one of the units as their primary 
residence and take residence of one of the units within 60 days of the purchase. 

The motion includes specific exemptions to the requirement to pay relocation assistance, 
including exemptions for landlords who own only one building of only four units in the City of 
Long Beach and for landlords who occupy a unit as their primary residence in the same building 
as their tenants. Due to these provisions, staff does not project adverse impacts on the local 
market for VA loans for four-unit properties. 

Good Standing 

The City Attorney, working with staff, has drafted the proposed Ordinance so that defaults 
which are reasonably susceptible to cure, such as failure to pay rent, or damage to the 
apartment that has since been repaired, or otherwise comply with material obligations of the 
lease, will not render a tenant ineligible for relocation assistance provided that such defaults 
are cured at the time relocation assistance is payable. However, other defaults, such as 
conducting illegal activities at the property or interfering with other tenants at the property, 
permanently render a tenant ineligible for relocation assistance. 







ATTACHMENT A



1 
 

Adopted Motion on Item 19, April 2, 2019 

Adopt staff’s recommendations with the following changes and/or additions: 

1. Rather than staff’s proposal, tenant relocation benefits shall be equal to two 
months of the respective payment standard by number of bedrooms averaged across all 
Long Beach zip codes in the Payment Standards / Small Area Fair Market Rents 
published by the Housing Authority of the City of Long Beach, provided that in no case 
shall relocation benefits payable to a tenant exceed $4,500.  Such relocation benefit 
amounts are currently as follows: 

 Studio   $2,706 

 1 Bedroom  $3,235 

 2 Bedroom  $4,185 

 3+ Bedroom  $4,500  

2. Remove the income requirements and pay relocation benefits to any otherwise 
qualified tenant regardless of income. 

3. Add an additional relocation benefit program for seniors and/or disabled in the 
amount of $2,000 to be distributed from a City fund.  Staff are directed to identify (i) a 
mechanism for implementation and administration of the program, (ii) costs of 
implementation and administration of the program, and (iii) potential sources of funding 
for the program. 

4. Require landlords to inform tenants of (i) methods to improve their credit score 
through reporting of timely payment of rent, and (ii) the availability of rental insurance. 

5. Add to and amend the events triggering payment of a relocation benefit as 
proposed by staff so that such trigger events, in their entirety, are as follows: 

 A. Tenant receives a notice(s) of rent increase(s) totaling ten percent (10%) or 
more in any 12-month period. 

 B. Tenant receives a notice to vacate due to landlord rehabilitating tenant’s 
unit. 

 C. Tenant is in good standing and receives a notice to vacate.  A tenant in 
good standing is one that has lived in a unit for more than one year and thereafter receives 
a notice to vacate and has not during its tenancy: 

  1. Defaulted in the payment of rent. 

  2. Failed to perform any provisions of the lease. 

  3. Materially damaged the unit. 
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  4. Substantially interfered with other tenants at the property. 

  5. Committed domestic violence or sexual assault against, or stalked 
another tenant in the unit and the victim has terminated its tenancy. 

  6. Used the unit for an unlawful purpose. 

  7. Unlawfully used or dealt drugs. 

  8. Using the premises to conduct dogfighting or cockfighting. 

  9. Unlawfully used of weapons or ammunition. 

6. Landlords will be exempt from payment of relocation benefits if any of the following 
apply: 

A. Landlord owns only one building of 4-units in the City of Long Beach. 

B. Landlord occupies a unit as landlord’s primary residence in the same 
building as tenant. 

C. Landlord issues a notice to vacate so in order for an immediate family 
member of Landlord to occupy the vacated unit. 

7. Require staff to bring the entire tenant relocation assistance program back before 
the City Council within three years after adoption of an ordinance for reconsideration by 
the Council. 

8. Direct staff to research the following: 

A. Research the applicability of VA loans for 4-unit properties and whether this 
policy will have an impact on the market. 

B. Research how a tenant could re-earn the status of “good standing” if a 
tenant has violated any provision during its tenancy. 

C. Research the issue of exemption of relocation benefits if a landlord provides 
at least 6-month notice to vacate. 

D. Confirm that the tenant relocation assistance program does not violate the 
Costa-Hawkins Act or any other provision of applicable law. 


